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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Commissioners of
Susquehanna River Basin Commission
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Susquehanna River Basin Commission (the
Commission), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Susquehanna River Basin Commission, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Members of the American and Pennsylvania Institutes of CPAs
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of funding progress, schedule of the Commission’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability, and schedule of Commission contributions, as listed in the table of
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information on page 47
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The accompanying supplementary information on page 47 and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
accompanying supplementary information on page 47 and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 2016, on our
consideration of the Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

October 28, 2016
Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania

Certified Public Accountants
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016
This section of the Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s (the Commission) Annual Report presents management’s
discussion and analysis of the Commission’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The
reader is encouraged to consider this information in conjunction with the Commission’s fiscal year- end financial
statements.
Financial Highlights
The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Susquehanna River Basin Commission exceeded its liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources at the end of the fiscal year by $68,744,256, which is an increase of $1,858,774
over the previous year. The Commission’s cash and cash equivalents decreased by $1,920,787 and its investments
increased by $6,902,185. Liabilities increased by $2,959,744 during the same period due primarily to an increase in
the net pension liability of $2,463,812 from the prior year and increases in deferred permit fees of $362,097.
The Commission’s total revenues increased by $592,039 this past year. This increase was due primarily to increases
in charges for services and grant revenue. Total operating expenses increased by $1,355,110 due to increases in
personnel services, employee benefits, and special contractual services.
In fiscal year 2016, the Commission will continue to pursue grant opportunities and coordinate our activities with
our member jurisdictions and other federal, state and local agencies. It is also our intent to increase scientific study
activities, which will be funded through a combination of sources, including Commission funds.
In 2008, the Commission adopted a Consumptive Use Mitigation Plan (CUMP), which presented the current state of
consumptive water use in the Susquehanna basin, identified low flow mitigation needs, and introduced the
Commission’s plan for meeting these needs. The plan includes: re-evaluation of Commission-owned storage at
Cowanesque and Curwensville reservoirs, acquisition of additional storage, and revision of the structure and level of
consumptive use fees charged. All studies and activities associated with the CUMP are and will continue to be
funded from the Commission’s Water Management Fund.
Significant capital expenditures will be required to purchase additional water storage projects in the foreseeable
future. The Commission will use its reserve funds and borrow to finance these projects. The Commission has
authority in its compact to issue bonds to finance major projects if approved by the Commission’s members.
In 2016 the Commission renamed the Settlement Fund the Sustainable Water Resources Fund. Over the next three
years this fund will be used to replace data sondes which supply information to the Commission’s Remote Water
Quality Monitoring Network. The fund will also be used to support internally-developed scientific studies.
Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s basic
financial statements. The Commission’s basic financial statements include three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
additional required supplementary information (budgetary schedules and post-employment benefits plan
information) in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. These components are described below:
Basic Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements present the financial picture of the commission from the economic
resource measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. These statements include all assets of the
Commission (including infrastructure) as well as all liabilities (including long-term debt and net pension liability).
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016
The fund financial statements include statements for three categories of activities – governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary. The Governmental Funds are prepared using the current financial resource measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with
the Proprietary Funds’ principal ongoing operations. Proprietary Funds use the accrual basis of accounting. The
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held on behalf of other parties. Fiduciary Funds use the accrual
basis of accounting.
The financial statements also include notes, which elaborate on some of the information in the financial
statements that provide more detailed data. These financial statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements.
Government-Wide Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the Commission’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
The statement of net position and the statement of activities report information about the Commission as a
whole and about its activities. These statements include all assets and liabilities of the Commission using the
accrual basis of accounting. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of
when cash is received or paid.
These two statements report the Commission’s net position and changes in it from year to year. You can think
of the Commission’s net position – the difference between assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and
deferred inflows – as one way to measure the Commission’s financial health or financial position. Over time,
increases and decreases in the Commission net positions are one indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in the
Commission’s federal and state grant programs and the condition of the Commission’s capital assets, as well as
other items, to assess the overall health of the Commission.



Governmental Activities – Most of the Commission’s basic services are reported here, including
permitting and monitoring.
Business-Type Activities – The Commission charges a consumptive water use fee which is used to
finance the cost of water supply related projects.

Fund Financial Statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The fund financial statements provide
detailed information about the most significant funds – note the Commission as a whole. Some funds are
required to be established by law or by bond covenants. However, the Commission may establish other funds to
help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is setting aside money for larger
capital improvement projects. The Commission has three kinds of funds – governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary.
Governmental Fund – Most of the Commission’s basic services are reported in a Governmental Fund,
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year end that are
available for spending. This fund is reported using the modified accrual method of accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The Governmental Fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Commission’s general government operations and the
basic services it provides. Governmental Fund information helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to financial the Commission’s programs. We
describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the statement of net
position and statement of activities) and Governmental Fund statements with a reconciliation following
each Governmental Fund statement.
Proprietary Funds – When Commission charges customers for the services it provides, these services are
generally reported in Proprietary Funds.
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016
Fiduciary Funds – The Commission is the Fiduciary for its Post-Employment Healthcare Benefit Trust. All
of the Commission’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate statements of fiduciary fund net position
and changes in fiduciary net position of the fund financial statements only. We exclude these activities
from the Commission’s government-wide financial statements because the Commission cannot use these
assets to finance its operations. The Commission is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these
funds are used for their intended purpose.
The Commission as a Whole
Our analysis below focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the Commission’s
governmental and business-type activities.
Governmental
Activities
2016
Assets
Current Assets
Capital Assets, Net
Water Storage Rights, Net

$

12,315,634
11,056,971
-

BusinessType
Activities
2016

Governmental
Activities
2015

$

10,517,563
11,222,079
-

$

BusinessType
Activities
2015

34,372,924
25,539,292

$

Total Primary
Government
2016

31,782,964
26,670,727

$

46,688,558
11,056,971
25,539,292

Total Primary
Government
2015

$

42,300,527
11,222,079
26,670,727

Total Assets

23,372,605

21,739,642

59,912,216

58,453,691

83,284,821

80,193,333

Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Pension

2,854,476

1,128,930

-

-

2,854,476

1,128,930

Total Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Long-Term loan payable
Long-Term Liabilities

$

26,227,081

$

22,868,572

$

59,912,216

$

58,453,691

$

86,139,297

$

81,322,263

$

2,234,038
12,724,485

$

1,610,017
10,205,977

$

214,645
2,194,048
-

$

187,387
2,404,091
-

$

2,448,683
2,194,048
12,724,485

$

1,797,404
2,404,091
10,205,977

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of
Resources, Pension
Net Position
Investment in Net Assets
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total Net Position
Total Net Position,
Liabilities, and Deferred
Inflows of Resources

$

14,958,523

11,815,994

2,408,693

2,591,478

17,367,216

14,407,472

27,825

29,309

-

-

27,825

29,309

11,056,971
183,762

11,222,079
(198,810)

23,134,688
34,368,835

24,079,249
31,782,964

34,191,659
34,552,597

35,301,328
31,584,154

11,240,733

11,023,269

57,503,523

55,862,213

68,744,256

66,885,482

26,227,081

$

22,868,572

$

59,912,216

$

58,453,691

$

86,139,297

$

81,322,263

Total net position of the governmental activities amounts to $11,240,733 at June 30, 2016, an increase of $217,464
from the prior year. Unrestricted net position (deficit) – the part of the net position that can be used to finance dayto-day operations without constraints established by enabling legislation or other legal requirements - amounts to a
surplus of $183,762 at June 30, 2016 compared to a deficit of $(198,810) at June 30, 2015. Net investment in
capital assets represents the Commission’s investment in capital assets reduced by the amount of outstanding debt
used to acquire those assets.
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

Total net position of the business-type activities amounts to $57,503,523 for the year ended June 30, 2016, an
increase of $1,641,310 from the prior year. Unrestricted net position – the part of the net position that can be used to
finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal
requirements – is $34,368,835 at June 30, 2016 compared to $31,782,964 at June 30, 2015.

Revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants
Contributions
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous

Governmental
Activities
2016

Governmental
Activities
2015

$

$

Total Revenues

5,685,637
1,942,710
1,092,000
129,671
124,545

5,316,119
1,621,705
1,192,000
91,778
139,082

BusinessType
Activities
2016
$

BusinessType
Activities
2015

4,078,525
823,013
-

$

4,640,763
282,615
-

Total Primary
Government
2016

Total Primary
Government
2015

$

$

9,764,162
1,942,710
1,092,000
952,684
124,545

9,956,882
1,621,705
1,192,000
374,393
139,082

8,974,563

8,360,684

4,901,538

4,923,378

13,876,101

13,284,062

7,979,849
1,772
1,892,825

7,024,087
61,368
1,560,337

-

-

7,979,849
1,772
1,892,825

7,024,087
61,368
1,560,337

-

-

2,142,881

2,016,425

2,142,881

2,016,425

Total Expenses

9,874,446

8,645,792

2,142,881

2,016,425

12,017,327

10,662,217

Other Financing Sources
Transfers

(1,117,347)

(841,493)

1,117,347

841,493

-

-

(1,117,347)

(841,493)

1,117,347

841,493

-

-

217,464

556,385

1,641,310

2,065,460

1,858,774

2,621,845

11,023,269

10,466,884

55,862,213

53,796,753

66,885,482

64,263,637

11,240,733 $

11,023,269

55,862,213 $

68,744,256

Expenses
General Government
Flood Forecast
Other
Water Management
and Settlement

Total Other Financing
Sources
Changes in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year
Net Position, End of Year

$

$

57,503,523

$

$

66,885,482

Governmental activities include the General Fund. Business-type activities are comprised of the operation of the
Commission’s Water Management and Sustainable Water Resources Funds.
Governmental Fund
The Commission’s Governmental Fund is the General Fund. Below is a revenue comparison of the General Fund
for the past two fiscal years.
General Fund Revenues
2016
2015
Signatory parties
Projects and programs
Permit and compliance fees
Interest and investments
Other
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$ 1,092,000
1,942,710
5,685,637
129,671
141,333

$ 1,192,000
1,914,245
4,763,892
91,778
143,992

$ 8,991,351

$ 8,105,907

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

In fiscal year 2016, General Fund revenues increased by $885,444 as compared to fiscal year 2015. This was
primarily due an increase in the number of projects paying the compliance and monitoring fee, and an increase in the
volume of permit applications and related services received and approved during the year.
Below is an expenditure comparison of General Fund expenditures for the past two fiscal years.

General Fund Expenditures
2016
2015
Personnel Services
Employee Benefits
Special Contractual Services
Travel and Meeting Expenses
Communications
Postage and Freight
Janitorial
Utilities
Rent
Printing and Reproduction
Repairs and Maintenance
Software Purchase and Maintenance
Insurance
Supplies
Fees - Various
Commissions Meetings / Public hearings
Dues and Memberships
Staff Trainings
Miscellaneous
Capital Outlay

$ 4,435,838
1,996,894
484,693
68,327
84,772
12,875
22,598
77,187
25,271
60,667
166,674
162,295
106,832
266,037
477,770
25,912
20,977
38,346
26,544
296,812

$ 4,162,206
1,709,348
190,015
81,644
79,577
14,181
22,698
72,398
24,843
54,642
161,707
107,176
90,620
152,737
313,030
37,371
11,698
68,298
25,796
286,070

$ 8,857,321

$ 7,666,055

In fiscal year 2016, operating expenditures increased by $1,191,266. Personnel services increased by $273,632 due
to the hiring of additional staff. Employee benefits increased by $287,546 due primarily to an increase in the
required contributions to the pension plan.

General Fund Revenues
Final Budget
Actual
Variance
Signatory parties
Projects and programs
Permit and compliance fees
Investments and Other Revenue

$ 1,192,000
2,305,000
5,756,000
355,000

$ 1,092,000
1,942,710
5,685,637
271,004

$ (100,000)
(362,290)
(70,363)
(83,996)

$ 9,608,000

$ 8,991,351

$

(616,649)

Revenue received in fiscal year 2016 was $616,649 less than budgeted amounts. Projects and programs revenue was
lower than budget due to delays in the progress of acid mine drainage projects.
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

General Fund Expenditures
Final Budget
Actual
Variance
Personnel Services
Employee Benefits
Special Contractual Services
Travel and Meeting Expenses
Communications
Postage and Freight
Janitorial
Utilities
Rent
Printing and Reproduction
Repairs and Maintenance
Software Purchase and Maintenance
Insurance
Supplies
Fees - Various
Commissions Meetings / Public hearings
Dues and Memberships
Staff Trainings
Miscellaneous
Capital Outlay

$ 4,640,000
2,090,000
1,300,000
90,000
90,000
20,000
25,000
75,000
35,000
65,000
145,000
160,000
95,000
215,000
340,000
40,000
15,000
75,000
15,000
300,000

$ 4,435,838
1,996,894
484,693
68,327
84,772
12,875
22,598
77,187
25,271
60,667
166,674
162,295
106,832
266,037
477,770
25,912
20,977
38,346
26,544
296,812

$

204,162
93,106
815,307
21,673
5,228
7,125
2,402
(2,187)
9,729
4,333
(21,674)
(2,295)
(11,832)
(51,037)
(137,770)
14,088
(5,977)
36,654
(11,544)
3,188

$ 9,830,000

$ 8,857,321

$

972,679

Expenditures for fiscal year 2016 were $972,679 below budget due to delays in the progress of acid mine drainage
projects.
Business-Type Activities
Below is a two-year revenue comparison for the Commission’s business-type activities.

Business - Type Activities
Revenue
2016
2015
Water Management Fees
Fines / Settlements
Operations and Maintenance - Cowanesque
Investment Income

$ 2,899,507
272,800
906,218
823,013

$ 3,697,631
170,050
773,082
282,615

$ 4,901,538

$ 4,923,378

In fiscal year 2016, business-type activities revenues in total were consistent with those of the previous fiscal year.
Water management fees decreased by $798,124 due to decreases in fees paid for the consumptive use of water by
natural gas companies. Investment income increased by $540,398 due to improved market performance of
investments.
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016
Below is a two-year expense comparison for the Commission’s business-type activities.
Business - Type Activities
Revenue
2016
2015
Cowanesque and Curwensville, Pennsylvania Operations and Maintenance
Interest Expense - Curwensville
Other
Water Storage Rights - Amortization

$

944,563
66,734
149
1,131,435

$

$ 2,142,881

801,669
77,437
5,883
1,131,436

$ 2,016,425

In fiscal year 2016, business-type activities expenses increased by $126,456 due to increases in operations and
maintenance costs at the Cowanesque reservoir.
Capital Assets, Water Storage Rights, and Debt Administration
Capital Assets and Water Storage Rights
As of June 30, 2016, the Commission had $36,596,263 invested in a variety of capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation), as reflected in the following schedule.
Governmental
Activities
Land
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Water Storage Rights

$

2,104,170
7,491,514
1,461,287
-

$ 11,056,971

Business-Type
Activities
$

25,539,292

$ 25,539,292

Total
$

2,104,170
7,491,514
1,461,287
25,539,292

$ 36,596,263

Additional information on the Commission’s capital assets can be found in Notes 3 and 4.
Debt Administration
At June 30, 2016, the Commission has $2,404,604 of debt outstanding, all recorded in business-type activities.
This is a decrease of $186,874 from the previous year. The Commission’s long-term debt consists of
borrowings related to the Curwensville Lake Water Supply project. Additional information on the
Commission’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates
On July 1, 2016, the Commission adopted a new fee schedule. Standard groundwater withdrawal application fees
were increased by 10% and municipal fees were increased by 3%. Approval by Rule application and renewal fees
were reduced by 20%.
The Commission’s approved budget for fiscal year 2017 includes General Fund revenue of $9,463,000 and Water
Management Fund revenue of $4,830,000, for combined revenue of $14,293,000.
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s
finances. This financial report seeks to demonstrate the Commission’s accountability for the money it receives.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be
addressed to the Commission at 4423 North Front Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

-10-

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2)
Investments (Note 2)
Due to (from) Other Funds (Note 7)
Due from Fiduciary Fund (Note 7)
Accounts Receivable
Water Storage Rights, Net (Note 3)
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated (Note 4)
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net (Note 4)
Post-Employment Healthcare Benefit Asset (Note 9)
Security Deposits and Prepaid Expenses

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

$

$

Total Assets

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows – Pension (Note 8)
Total Deferred Inflows
Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Net Position

83,284,821

2,854,476

-

2,854,476

2,854,476

-

2,854,476

$ 26,227,081

$ 59,912,216

$ 86,139,297

$

$

$

443,647
50,635
1,739,756
297,372
406,477
12,020,636

4,089
210,556
2,194,048
-

447,736
50,635
1,739,756
210,556
2,194,048
297,372
406,477
12,020,636

14,958,523

2,408,693

17,367,216

27,825

-

27,825

27,825

-

27,825

11,056,971
183,762

23,134,688
34,368,835

34,191,659
34,552,597

11,240,733

57,503,523

68,744,256

$ 26,227,081

$ 59,912,216

$ 86,139,297
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$ 11,151,692
33,699,976
132,745
1,496,175
25,539,292
2,104,170
8,952,801
199,725
8,245

59,912,216

Total Deferred Outflows

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll
Unearned Revenue
Loans Payable – Curwensville – Current Portion (Note 5)
Long-Term Loan Payable – Curwensville, Net (Note 5)
Accrued Sick Leave (Note 6)
Accrued Vacation (Note 6)
Net Pension Liability (Note 8)

5,949,921
27,824,704
(188,127)
786,426
25,539,292
-

23,372,605

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows – Pension (Note 8)

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

5,201,771
5,875,272
188,127
132,745
709,749
2,104,170
8,952,801
199,725
8,245

Total

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Expenses
Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities:
General/Administration
Chesapeake Bay
Cowanesque Project
EPA Water Quality
Flood Forecast
Flood Hazard Mitigation Grant
PA Public Water Assistance Initiative
Enhanced Bay Monitoring – EPA
AMD – Bear, Sandy, Birch
Remote W/Q Monitoring Network
Didymo Sea Grant
Dirt and Gravel Roads
Watershed Restoration
Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities:
Water Management and Sustainable
Water Resources
Total Primary Government

$

7,931,736
480,075
8,120
689,714
1,772
48,113
104,824
204,767
80,264
132,664
30,178
94,936
67,283

Program Revenues
Charges for
Operating Grants and
Services
Contributions

$

5,685,637
-

$

480,075
8,120
689,714
1,772
48,113
104,824
204,767
80,264
132,664
30,178
94,936
67,283

$ (2,246,099)
(2,246,099)

9,874,446

5,685,637

1,942,710

2,076,147

4,078,525

-

9,764,162

$ 1,942,710

$ 11,950,593

$

General Revenues:
Signatory Contributions
Investment Earnings
Loss on Disposal of Capital Asset
Miscellaneous
Rental Income
Transfers
Total General Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes In Net Position
Governmental
Business-Type
Activities
Activities
Total

-

Net Position, Beginning of Year
Net Position, End of Year

$ (2,246,099)
-

-

(2,246,099)

2,002,378

2,002,378

2,002,378

(243,721)

1,092,000
129,671
(16,788)
37,007
104,326
1,117,347

823,013

1,092,000
952,684
(16,788)
(29,727)
104,326
-

(66,734)
(1,117,347)
(361,068)

2,102,495

217,464

1,641,310

1,858,774

11,023,269

55,862,213

66,885,482

$ 11,240,733

$ 57,503,523

$ 68,744,256
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-

(2,246,099)

2,463,563

Changes in Net Position

$

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Balance Sheet – Governmental Fund – General Fund
June 30, 2016

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2)
Investments (Note 2)
Due From Other Funds (Note 7)
Due From Fiduciary Funds (Note 7)
Accounts Receivable
Contracts
Wages
Security Deposit

$

5,201,771
5,875,272
188,127
132,745
707,458
2,291
8,245

Total Assets

$ 12,115,909

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Taxes
Unearned Revenue

$

Total Liabilities

443,647
50,635
1,739,756
2,234,038

Fund Balance
Assigned
Unassigned

4,790,669
5,091,202

Total Fund Balance

9,881,871

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$ 12,115,909

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of the Financial Statements
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

Total Fund Balance – Governmental Fund

$

9,881,871

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different
because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the governmental fund financial statements. The cost of assets is
$14,535,125 and accumulated depreciation is $3,478,154.
Governmental funds do not report accrued vacation and sick leave on the Governmental Fund
Balance Sheet, which is reported on the Statement of Net Position of the government-wide
statements.
Governmental funds do not report a post-employment healthcare benefit asset on the
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet, which is reported on the Statement of Net Position of
the government-wide statements.
Governmental funds do not report the net pension liability and associated deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources on the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet,
which is reported on the Statement of Net Position of the government-wide statements.

11,056,971

(703,849)

199,725

(9,193,985)
$ 11,240,733

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of the Financial Statements
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances –
Governmental Fund – General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues
Signatory Parties
Maryland
New York
Pennsylvania
Projects and Programs
Chesapeake Bay
Cowanesque Project
EPA Water Quality
Flood Forecast
Flood Hazard Mitigation Grant
PA Public Water Assistance Initiative
Enhanced Bay Monitoring – EPA
AMD – Bear, Sandy, Birch
Remote W/Q Monitoring Network
Didymo Sea Grant
Dirt and Gravel Roads
Watershed Restoration
Other Revenue
Permit Application Fees
NOI Permit Fees
Compliance Monitoring Fees
Special Project Review Fees
Net Realized/Unrealized Loss on Investments
Interest and Dividend Income
Rental Income (Note 10)
Miscellaneous

$

360,000
259,000
473,000
480,075
8,120
689,714
1,772
48,113
104,824
204,767
80,264
132,664
30,178
94,936
67,283
774,979
2,300,078
2,371,200
239,380
(14,931)
144,602
104,326
37,007

Total Revenues

8,991,351

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of the Financial Statements
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances –
Governmental Fund – General Fund (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Expenditures
Personnel Services
Employee Benefits
Special Contractual Services
Travel and Subsistence
Communications
Postage and Freight
Janitorial
Utilities
Rent
Printing and Reproduction
Repairs and Maintenance
Software Maintenance
Insurance
Supplies
Fees – Various
Commission Meetings/Public Hearings
Dues and Memberships
Staff Training
Miscellaneous
Capital Outlay

4,435,838
1,996,894
484,693
68,327
84,772
12,875
22,598
77,187
25,271
60,667
166,674
162,295
106,832
266,037
477,770
25,912
20,977
38,346
26,544
296,812

Total Expenditures

8,857,321

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures

134,030

Other Financing Sources
Transfer in – Water Management

1,117,347

Net Change in Fund Balances

1,251,377

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

8,630,494

Fund Balances, End of Year

$ 9,881,871
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Net Change in Fund Balances – Governmental Fund

$

1,251,377

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities are difference because:
Capital outlays are reported in Governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of these assets is
allocated over estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the
amount that capital outlay exceeds depreciation in the current period.
Less Depreciation Expense
Capital Outlays

(445,132)
296,812

(148,320)

The governmental fund does not report gain or loss on disposal of assets as
an increase or reduction of current year expenditures on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance; however, this
change is reported on the Statement of Activities of the government-wide
statements.

(16,788)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental fund.
Compensated Absences
Net Pension Liability
Pension Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Post-Employment Healthcare Plan

(54,696)
(2,463,812)
1,727,030
(77,327)

(868,805)
$

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities
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217,464

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2016

Sustainable
Water
Resources
Fund

Water
Management
Fund
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2)
Investments (Note 2)
Receivables – Fees

$

Total Current Assets
Water Storage Rights, Net (Note 3)
Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds (Note 7)
Loan Payable – Current Portion (Note 5)
Total Current Liabilities
Loan Payable – Long-Term Portion (Note 5)
Total Liabilities
Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted Net Position
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities and Net Position

3,641,467
22,099,730
786,426

$

2,308,454
5,724,974
-

$

5,949,921
27,824,704
786,426

26,527,623

8,033,428

34,561,051

25,539,292

-

25,539,292
$ 60,100,343

$ 52,066,915

$

8,033,428

$

$

-

4,089
188,127
210,556

$

4,089
188,127
210,556

402,772

-

402,772

2,194,048

-

2,194,048

2,596,820

-

2,596,820

23,134,688
26,335,407

8,033,428

23,134,688
34,368,835

49,470,095

8,033,428

57,503,523

8,033,428

$ 60,100,343

$ 52,066,915

$
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Total

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Operating Revenues
Water Management Fees
Operating and Maintenance Fees – Cowanesque
Fines and Settlements
Total Operating Revenues

Water
Management
Fund

Sustainable
Water
Resources
Fund

$

$

2,899,507
906,218
-

Total

272,800

$

2,899,507
906,218
272,800

3,805,725

272,800

4,078,525

944,563
149
1,131,435

-

944,563
149
1,131,435

Total Operating Expenses

2,076,147

-

2,076,147

Operating Income

1,729,578

272,800

2,002,378

Operating Expenses
Cowanesque and Curwensville – Operations & Maintenance
Water Management Expenditures
Water Storage Rights – Amortization Expense

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Realized/Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments
Investment Earnings
Interest Expense – Curwensville
Total Non-Operating Revenues
Income Before Transfers
Transfers Out

159,231
564,762
(66,734)

(122,813)
221,833
-

36,418
786,595
(66,734)

657,259

99,020

756,279

2,386,837

371,820

2,758,657

(1,117,347)

-

(1,117,347)

Change in Net Position

1,269,490

371,820

1,641,310

Net Position, Beginning of Year

48,200,605

7,661,608

55,862,213

$ 49,470,095

$ 8,033,428

$ 57,503,523

Net Position, End of Year

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of the Financial Statements
-19-

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers and Users
Payments to Suppliers

Water
Management
Fund

Sustainable
Water
Resources
Fund

$

$

3,805,725
(875,629)

Total

272,800
-

$

4,078,525
(875,629)

Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Provided by
Operating Activities

2,930,100

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Transfers Out

(1,117,347)

-

(1,117,347)

(186,874)
(66,734)

-

(186,874)
(66,734)

(253,608)

-

(253,608)

(7,352,978)
3,002,624
564,762

(396,680)
182,660
221,833

(7,749,662)
3,185,284
786,595

Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Provided (Used) by
Investing Activities

(3,785,596)

7,813

(3,777,783)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(2,226,451)

280,613

(1,945,838)

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities:
Principal Payment on Long-Term Debt
Payments for Interest Expense
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Used by
Capital Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of Investments
Sales of Investments
Interest and Dividend Income

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash and
Cash Equivalents Provided by Operating Activities
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash and
Cash Equivalents Provided by Operating Activities:
Amortization
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Increase in Due to Other Funds
Increase in Due to Other Funds
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents
Provided by Operating Activities

272,800

5,867,918

2,027,841

$

3,641,467

$ 2,308,454

$

5,949,921

$

1,729,578

$

$

2,002,378

272,800

1,131,435

2,930,100

7,895,759

-

73,600
(8,606)
4,089

$

1,131,435

-

$

272,800
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3,202,900

73,600
(8,606)
4,089

$

3,202,900

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Statement of Fiduciary Fund Net Position – Fiduciary Fund –
Defined Benefit Post-Employment Healthcare Plan
June 30, 2016

Assets
Cash (Note 2)
Investments (Note 2)
Total Assets

Liabilities
Healthcare Reimbursement Payable

$

29,626
1,874,346

$

1,903,972

$

132,745

Total Liabilities

132,745

Net Position
Reserved for Employees’ Healthcare Benefits

1,771,227

Total Net Position

1,771,227

Total Liabilities and Net Position

$
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1,903,972

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Fund Net Position – Fiduciary Fund –
Defined Benefit Post-Employment Healthcare Plan
June 30, 2016

Additions
Investment Income

$

Total Additions

56,005
56,005

Deductions
Benefits
Administrative Expenses

132,745
3,828

Total Deductions

136,573

Net Decrease

(80,568)

Net Position, Beginning of Year

1,851,795

Net Position, End of Year

$ 1,771,227
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Susquehanna River Basin Commission (the Commission) was created by the Susquehanna
River Basin Compact (the Compact) to develop and effectuate plans, policies, and projects relating
to the water resources of the Susquehanna River Basin. The Compact was approved by the four
signatory parties: the States of Maryland and New York, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
and the United States Government.
The accounting policies of the Commission conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the
more significant policies.
Reporting Entity:
As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these
financial statements present the Commission (the primary government).
In evaluating how to define the Commission for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, which require a component unit to be included if the
Commission’s elected officials are financially accountable for the component unit. The
Commission is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s
governing body and (1) it is able to impose its will on the organization or (2) there is a potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens
on the Commission. The Commission may be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally
dependent on the Commission, regardless of whether the organization has (1) a separately elected
governing board, (2) a governing board appointed by a higher level of government, or (3) a jointly
appointed board. There are no agencies or entities that should be presented with the Commission
Basis of Presentation:
The accounts of the Commission are organized on the fund basis, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures. The various funds are summarized by type in the financial statements. The
Commission’s Governmental Fund is the General Fund. Its Proprietary Funds are the Water
Management Fund and the Sustainable Water Resources Fund, and its Fiduciary Fund is the
Defined Benefit Post-Employment Healthcare Plan.
Basis of Accounting:
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole. The statements include the primary government, except for the fiduciary
funds.
Separate rows and columns are used to distinguish between the governmental and business-type
activities of the government. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. These activities are usually
reported in governmental funds. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties for goods or services. These activities are usually reported in enterprise
funds.
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
For The Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of Accounting (Continued):
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities are prepared using the economic
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue, expenses, gains, losses, assets,
and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the
exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of governmental
accounting standards.
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. All governmental funds of the Commission are accounted for using the
current financial resources measurement focus. Accordingly, only current assets and current
liabilities are included on the balance sheet, and the fund balances reflect spendable or
appropriable resources. The operation statements of these funds reflect increases (i.e., revenues
and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net
current assets.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Commission
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting.
The proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus. All
assets and liabilities (current and non-current) associated with the operation of the funds are
included on its Statement of Net Position. The proprietary fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Fund Net Position presents increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g.,
expenses) in total net position. Proprietary funds use the accrual basis of accounting as previously
described.
Fund Financial Statements
The financial transactions of the Commission are reported in individual funds in the fund financial
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. The
various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements.
The Commission reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund – The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Commission. All
financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund, are accounted
for in the General Fund.
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The Commission reports the following major proprietary fund:
Water Management Fund and Sustainable Water Resources Fund – The Commission
currently charges entities using water that results in an evaporation process or that is not
returned directly back into the water system. The fee charged for such use is currently
$0.33 per 1,000 gallons consumed. The money received under this agreement was
internally designated by the Commissioners to be separate and used for research and
development of water resource-related projects. The Sustainable Water Resources Fund
represents non-compliance fines and settlements related to the Commission’s
requirements in administrating its water resource regulatory authority for water usage.
In addition, the Commission reports the following fiduciary fund types:
The Commission currently has one Fiduciary Fund. This fund reports the Commission’s postemployment healthcare benefit trust.
In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position, some amounts reported as
inter-fund balances in the funds are eliminated or reclassified. Eliminations are made in the
Statement of Net Position to minimize the “grossing-up” effect on assets and liabilities within the
governmental and business-type activities columns of the primary government. As a result,
amounts reported in the funds as inter-fund receivables and payables are eliminated in the
governmental and business-type activities columns of the Statement of Net Position, except for the
net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented
as internal balances.
The Statement of Activities reports three categories of program revenues: (a) charges for services,
and (b) program specific operating grants and contributions. Program revenues are derived
directly from the program itself or from parties outside the reporting government’s taxpayers or
citizenry. As a whole they reduce the net cost of the function to be financed from the
government’s general revenues.
The Commission defines proprietary funds’ operation revenues based on how the individual
transaction would be categorized for purposes of preparing the Statement of Cash Flows.
Transactions for which cash flows are reported as capital and related financing activities, noncapital financing activities or investing activities would normally not be reported as operating
revenues.
The Commission first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available.
Vacation and Sick Leave:
Under terms of the Commission’s employment agreement, employees are granted vacation and
sick leave in varying amounts. Salaried employees may accumulate up to 45 vacation days, which
are payable by the Commission at the time of severance. Employees commencing employment
prior to July 1, 2011 are permitted to accumulate a maximum of 90 sick days which are payable
upon retirement at 40% of the vested balance. Vested balances in excess of 90 days (to the prior
maximum of 180 days) as of June 30, 2011 have been grandfathered and remain payable unless
used in the course of employment. Employees hired after July 1, 2011 are not eligible to accrue
vested sick leave benefits.
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments:
Investments are recorded at fair value for all mutual funds and equity securities held by the
Commission. All cash and money market funds are recorded at cost, which approximates fair
value.
Capital Assets and Depreciation:
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, the Commission reports capital assets at historical cost or estimated historical cost.
Capital assets include land, improvements, easements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles,
machinery, equipment infrastructure, and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used in
operations and that have useful lives extending beyond a single reporting period. The
Commission’s policy is to capitalize assets, or groups of assets with costs in excess of $5,000.
Depreciation of capital assets is computed and recorded by the straight-line method. Estimated
useful lives of the various classes of depreciable capital assets are as follows:
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment

20-50 Years
2-15 Years

Maintenance and repairs of capital assets are expensed when incurred.
Long-Lived Assets:
Long-lived assets, other than those held for sale, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicated that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. An asset is
considered to be impaired when the undiscounted estimated net cash flows to be generated by the
asset are less than the carrying amount. The impairment recognized is the amount by which the
carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the impaired asset. Management has concluded that no
impairment reserves are required at June 30, 2016.
Self-Insurance:
The Commission has elected to be a self-insured participant in the Pennsylvania Unemployment
Compensation Program. The reserve for such claims is estimated by the Commission’s
administrators based on prior years’ experience.
Accounts Receivable:
All accounts receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles, as applicable. Accounts
receivable are continually elevated for collectibility and an allowance is established, as deemed
necessary, based on the best information available and in an amount that management believes is
adequate. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of
accounts receivable previously written off are recorded when received. No allowance was deemed
necessary at June 30, 2016.
Unearned Revenues:
The Commission recognizes revenue received for application and modification fees when an
application is approved, denied, or rescinded. Unearned revenue represents fees paid for
applications or modifications which are awaiting action by the Commission.
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Commission considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity date of three months or less to be equivalents.
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NOTE 1

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Defined Benefit Pension Plan:
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the pension plan and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the Pennsylvania State Employees’ Retirement System (SERS), and
additions to/deletions from SERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by SERS. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Fund Balance Classifications:
A description of the fund balance classifications used by the Commission for its General Fund
follows:
In the government-wide financial statements, net position is classified in the following categories:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt – This category groups all capital assets,
including infrastructure, into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and
the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of these assets reduce this category.
Restricted Net Position – This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The Commission does not
have any restricted net position at June 30, 2016.
Unrestricted Net Position – This category represents the net position of the Commission,
which is not restricted for any project or other purpose.
In the fund financial statements, fund balances of governmental funds are classified as follows:
In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the Commission classifies governmental
fund balances as follows:


Nonspendable – includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.



Restricted – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes
which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or
laws and regulations of other governments, or amounts constrained by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.



Committed – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes
that are internally imposed by the Commission through formal action of the highest level
of decision making authority and does not lapse at year-end.



Assigned – includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. Fund balance may be
assigned by the governing body itself or a body or official to which the governing body
has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.
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NOTE 1

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fund Balance Classifications (Continued):

Unassigned – includes fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes.
Approval of an official motion at a formal meeting by the Commissioners is required to establish,
modify, or rescind committed fund balance. The Commissioners have the authority to express
intended uses of resources that result in assigned fund balance.
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which more than one classification of fund
balance is available, it is the Commission’s policy to use fund balances in the following order:
committed, assigned, and unassigned.
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources
are available, the Commission’s policy is to spend resources in the following order:
1.
2.

Restricted
Unrestricted

Unless the Commissioners specifically approves the use of committed resources, or the
Commissioners or the authorized body or official specifically approves the use of assigned
resources, the Commission’s policy is to spend unrestricted resources in the following order:
1.
2.
3.

Unassigned
Assigned
Committed

The Commission does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy.
Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United State of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Risk Management:
The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
Significant losses are covered by commercial insurance for all major programs. There were no
significant reductions in insurance coverage in fiscal year 2016. Settlement amounts have not
exceeded insurance coverage for the current and prior two years.
Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability:
The Commission had no material violations of finance-related legal and contractual obligations.
Adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards:
In February 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.
This statement provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting
purposes and defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to
transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
This statement also provides guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and
disclosures related to fair value measurements. This guidance is effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2015.
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NOTE 1

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued):
In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. This statement defines the composition of financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information for defined benefit other
postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans that are administered through trusts that meet specified
criteria. Statement No. 74 is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016.
In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pensions. This Statement requires governments to
report a liability on the face of the financial statements for the net OPEB liability. This guidance
also requires governments to present more extensive not disclosures and supplementary
information for OPEB plans. Statement No. 75 is effective for periods beginning after June 15,
2017.
The Commission is currently evaluating what effect the adoption of the GASB pronouncements
listed above will have on the Commission’s financial statements.
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Outflows of Resources – a consumption of net assets by the Commission that is
applicable to a future reporting period. It has a positive effect on net position, similar to assets.
Deferred Inflows of Resources – an acquisition of net assets by the Commission that is
applicable to a future reporting period. It has a negative effect on net position, similar to
liabilities.

NOTE 2

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Commission’s deposits may
not be returned to them. The Commission does not have a policy for custodial credit risk on
deposits.
At June 30, 2016, the carrying amount of the Commission’s bank deposits was $10,969,032, and
the corresponding bank balance was $11,387,183, of which $500,000 was covered by the FDIC.
An amount of $8,761,658 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department, but not
in the Commission’s name. The Commission maintains a portion of its cash and cash equivalents
in money market accounts which are insured by the FDIC, but not collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department. The amount not collateralized totaled
$2,125,525 at June 30, 2016. In addition, the Commission also maintained cash on hand of $600
at June 30, 2016.
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to an investment transaction will fail and the
government will not recover the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in
possession of an outside party. The Commission does not have a formal policy investment policy
for custodial credit risk. The Commission’s investments cannot be classified by risk category
because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.
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NOTE 2

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Foreign Currency Risk:
The Commission’s investment policy limits investment in foreign equity securities to 30% of
portfolio value. Investments in foreign fixed income securities are not specifically limited.
The Commission records investments at their fair market value. Cash, cash equivalents, and
investments are composed of the following at June 30, 2016:

Cash and Cash
Equivalents
Governmental
Proprietary
Fiduciary

$

Total

5,201,771
5,949,921
29,626

$ 11,181,318

Investments
$

Total Cash, Cash
Equivalents, and
Investments

5,875,272
27,824,704
1,874,346

$ 11,077,043
33,774,625
1,903,972

$ 35,574,322

$ 46,755,640

The Commission had the following investments with the following average maturities at June 30,
2016:
Fair Value

No Stated
Maturity(1)

$ 2,089,895

$ 2,089,895

3,785,377

3,785,377

-

-

-

-

Total Equities

5,875,272

5,875,272

-

-

-

-

Total
Governmental
Funds

5,875,272

5,875,272

-

-

-

-

16,174,827

16,174,827

-

-

-

-

11,649,877

11,649,877

-

-

-

-

Total Equities

27,824,704

27,824,704

-

-

-

-

Total Proprietary
Funds

27,824,704

27,824,704

-

-

-

-

939,172
935,174

939,172
935,174

-

-

-

-

1,874,346

1,874,346

-

-

-

-

$ 35,574,322

$ 35,574,322

Investment Type
Governmental Funds
Stocks and ETFs
Equity Mutual
Funds

Proprietary Funds
Stocks and ETFs
Equity Mutual
Funds

Fiduciary Funds
Stocks and ETFs
Mutual Funds
Total Fiduciary
Funds
Total
Investments

(1)

Less Than 1
Year

1 to 5 Years

$

$

$

-

-

$

-

-

5 to 10
Years

$

$

Maturity data is not available for certain funds with diversified holdings.
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NOTE 2

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair Value Measurements Using

Investments by Fair Value Level
Equity Securities
Stocks and ETFs
Equity Mutual Funds
Total Equity Securities
Total Investments by Fair Value Level

6/30/2016

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

$ 19,203,894
16,370,428

$ 19,203,894
16,370,428

35,574,322

35,574,322

$ 35,574,322

$ 35,574,322

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

$

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

-

$

$

-

-

$

-

Interest Rate Credit Risk:
As a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates, the
Commission’s investment policy limits investment in fixed income securities with average
maturities greater than three years to 0% of portfolio value.
Concentration of Credit Risk:
The Commission places a limit on the amount the Commission may invest in any one company’s
stock at 3% of the total non-fiduciary portfolio, and no more than 20% of the total non-fiduciary
portfolio shall be invested in any one industry sector. At year-end there were no investments in
any one issuer greater than 3%.
NOTE 3

WATER STORAGE RIGHTS
On June 30, 1986, the Commission entered into a contract with the Department of the Army Corps
of Engineers, for the inclusion of 24,335 acre-feet of additional water supply storage as an
additional use at the Cowanesque Reservoir, Tioga County, Pennsylvania. The reformulation
construction phase was completed in 1990 at a total cost of approximately $16,500,000. The
contract provides for the repayment to the Federal Government of $39,414,000 of the original
project construction costs with interest at 7.69%, amortized over a 50-year period. However, the
debt repayment was completed during the year ended June 30, 2005. The Water Storage Rights
Asset is reflected in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. The Commission is required
to pay the Army Corps of Engineers a prorated share of the annual operations and maintenance
cost of the project. The prorated share of annual operations and maintenance cost for the year
ended June 30, 2016 amounted to $906,218. The Commission now has a permanent right for the
use of an additional 24,335 acre-feet of supply storage.
On September 30, 1994, the Commission entered into a contract with the Department of the Army
Corps of Engineers, for the inclusion of 5,360 acre-feet of additional water supply storage at
Curwensville Lake, Clearfield County, Pennsylvania. The reformulation construction phase was
completed at a total allocated cost to the Commission of approximately $4,878,000. The contract
provides for the repayment to the Federal Government of $4,878,000 of the original project
construction costs. The Commission is also required to pay the Army Corps of Engineers a prorated
share of the annual operations and maintenance cost of the project. The prorated share of annual
operations and maintenance cost for the year ended June 30, 2016 amounted to $38,345. The
Commission now has a permanent right for the use of an additional 5,360 acre-feet of supply storage.
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NOTE 3

WATER STORAGE RIGHTS (CONTINUED)
Balance
July 1, 2015
Cowanesque Water Storage Rights
Curwensville Water Storage Rights

$ 36,528,466
4,878,000

Additions
$

Balance
June 30, 2016

Deletions
-

$

-

$ 36,528,466
4,878,000

Total Water Storage Rights

41,406,466

-

-

41,406,466

Less Accumulated Depreciation

14,735,739

1,131,435

-

15,867,174

Water Storage Rights, Net

$ 26,670,727

(1,131,435) $

-

$ 25,539,292

$

Amortization expense is computed utilizing the straight-line method over periods ranging from 27
to 38 years.
Amortization expense included in the government-wide Statement of Activities for the year ended
June 30, 2016 was $1,131,435. Amortization expense is estimated to be $1,131,435 per year for
each of the next five years.
NOTE 4

CAPITAL ASSETS
A summary of capital asset activity follows for the year ended June 30, 2016:
Balance
July 1, 2015
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land
Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated

$

2,104,170

Additions

$

Balance
June 30, 2016

Deletions

-

$

-

2,104,170

2,104,170

-

7,976,182
4,337,563

296,812

(179,602)

7,976,182
4,454,773

Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated

12,313,745

296,812

(179,602)

12,430,955

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment

297,238
2,898,598

187,430
257,702

(162,814)

484,668
2,993,486

Total – Less Accumulated
Depreciation

3,195,836

445,132

(162,814)

3,478,154

Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, Net

9,117,909

(148,320)

(16,788)

8,952,801

(148,320) $

(16,788) $ 11,056,971

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment

Capital Assets, Net

$ 11,222,079

$

-

$

2,104,170

Depreciation expense included in the government-wide Statement of Activities under general
administration for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $445,132.
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NOTE 5

LOAN PAYABLE
The following is a summary of the changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30,
2016:
Balance
July 1, 2015

Additions
(Repayments)

Balance
June 30, 2016

$

$

Business-Type Activities:
FNB Curwensville Lake Water Supply
Loan, initial issue $3,776,940; modified
July 2012; fixed interest rate of 2.83%
through July 2017, variable thereafter at
WSJ Prime plus 1.00% (subject to 5.00%
floor) through maturity in August 2026.
$

2,591,478

(186,874)

2,404,604

Aggregate maturities required on long-term debt are as follows at June 30, 2016:
Principal
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022-2026
2027

$

Total

Interest

210,556
216,941
223,024
229,014
235,414
1,277,415
12,240

$

67,188
57,925
51,678
45,688
39,288
96,095
154

$ 2,404,604

$

358,016

Total Debt Service

$

277,744
274,866
274,702
274,702
274,702
1,373,510
12,394

$ 2,762,620

Interest paid on this loan payable was $66,734 for the year ended June 30, 2016.
NOTE 6

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
The following represents changes in long-term liabilities, other than the long-term loan payable:
Balance
Outstanding
July 1, 2015
Governmental Activities
Accrued Vacation
Accrued Sick Leave
Net Pension Liability
Total

$

Additions

Reductions

Balance
Outstanding
June 30, 2016

371,090
278,063
9,556,824

$

209,643
337,280
2,463,812

$

(174,256)
(317,971)
-

$

406,477
297,372
12,020,636

$ 10,205,977

$

3,010,735

$

(492,227)

$ 12,724,485

Maturity of the liabilities stated above is subject to future events and conditions, and accordingly,
the Commission considers there to be no material current maturities.
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NOTE 7

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS
Activities between funds that are representative of a lending/borrowing arrangement that are
outstanding at the end of the period are referred to as “due to/from other funds” in the fund
financial statements. Any residual balance outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as due to/from
other funds. The purpose of the interfund transfer balances in the fund financial statement is to
show all assets and liabilities of the major funds and the aggregate nonmajor funds.
Interfund balances consisted of the following at June 30, 2016:
Due To
Governmental Fund – General Fund
Governmental Fund – General Fund
Proprietary Fund – Water Management Fund
Fiduciary Fund – Defined Benefit Post-Employment
Healthcare Plan
Total

$

188,127

Due From
$

132,745
$

320,872

188,127
132,745
-

$

320,872

This balance resulted from the time lag between the date that (1) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting
system, and (3) payments between funds are made.
Interfund transfers consisted of the following during the year ended June 30, 2016:

Governmental Fund – General Fund
Proprietary Fund – Water Management Fund
Total

Transfers In

Transfers Out

$ 1,117,347
-

$

$ 1,117,347

$ 1,117,347

1,117,347

Transfers from the Water Management Fund to the General Fund are to reimburse certain
expenses related to ongoing projects paid by the General Fund on behalf of the Water
Management Fund.
NOTE 8

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
Plan Description:
Susquehanna River Basin Commission employees are provided with pensions through the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania State Employees’ Retirement System (SERS or the Plan), a costsharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established by the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania (the Commonwealth) to provide pension benefits for employees of state government
and certain independent agencies. SERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be
obtained at www.SERS.pa.gov.
Benefits Provided:
SERS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. Article II of the Commonwealth’s
constitution assigns the authority to establish and amend the benefit provision of the plan to the
General Assembly. Member retirement benefits are determined by taking years of credited
services, multiplied by final average salary, multiplied by 2%, multiplied by class of service
multiplier. According to the State Employees’ Retirement Code, all obligations of SERS will be
assumed by the Commonwealth should SERS terminate.
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NOTE 8

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Contributions:
Section 5507 of the SERC (71 Pa. C.S. §5507) requires the Commonwealth and other employers
whose employees are SERS member to make contributions to the fund on behalf of all active
members and annuitants necessary to fund the liabilities and provide the annuity reserves required
to pay benefits. SERS funding policy, as set by the board, provides for periodic active member
contributions at statutory rates. The SERS funding policy also provides for periodic employer
contributions at actuarially determined rates based on SERS funding valuation, expressed as a
percentage of annual retirement covered payroll, such that they, along with employee
contributions and an actuarially determined rate of investment return, are adequate to accumulate
assets to pay benefits when due. However, Act 2010-120 imposes rate increase collars (limits on
annual rate increase) on employer contributions. The collar for the Commonwealth fiscal year
ending June 30, 2014 was 4.5% and will remain at that rate until no longer needed.
Most active Commission members contribute at a rate of 6.25% of their gross pay. For the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the rates of employer contribution were 25% and 19.92% of
covered payroll, respectively. Contributions to the pension plan from the Commission were
$988,414 for the year ended June 30, 2016.
Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pension:
At June 30, 2016, the Commission reported a liability of $12,020,636 for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2015, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date. The allocation percentage assigned to each employer in the Plan is based
on a projected-contribution method. This method applies the most recently calculated contribution
rates for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, from the December 31, 2015 funding valuation, to
the expected funding payroll for the allocation of the 2015 amounts, and the contribution rates for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 from the December 31, 2015 funding valuation to the
expected funding payroll for the allocation of the December 31, 2015 net pension liability. At
December 31, 2015, the Commission’s proportion was 0.066%, which was an increase of 0.002%
from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2014.
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Commission recognized pension expense of $1,725,194.
The Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources at June 30, 2016:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences Between Projected and Actual Experience
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Pension Plan Investments
Changes in Assumptions
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between
Employer Contributions and Proportionate Share of
Contributions
Commission Contributions Subsequent to the
Measurement Date
Total

$

243,395

$

-

1,223,923
357,130

-

550,808

27,825

479,220

-

$ 2,854,476
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NOTE 8

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
An amount of $479,220 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting
from Commission contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows for the years ended December 31:
2017
2018
2019
2020

$

605,626
605,626
494,339
36,214

The components of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, other than
the difference between the projected and actual investment earnings on investments, are amortized
into pension expense over a 5.2-year closed period for 2015, which reflects the weighted average
remaining service life of all SERS members, beginning the year in which the deferred amount
occurs (current year). The annual difference between the projected and actual earnings on SERS
investments is amortized over a five-year closed period beginning the year in which the difference
occurs (current year).
Actuarial Assumptions:
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Inflation
Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return

2.75%
Average of 5.70%, Range of 3.85% - 9.05%
7.50%, Net of Expenses Including Inflation

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table for Males or Females, as
appropriate, with adjustments for actual plan experience and future improvement.
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2015 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2015. As a result of
the 2016 actuarial experience study, recommendations were made with respect to the actuarial
assumptions and methods. The next experience study will cover the years 2016 through 2020 and
is expected to be released in early 2021.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation.
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NOTE 8

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation are summarized in the following table at
December 31, 2015:
Long-Term
Target
Expected Real
Asset Class
Allocation
Rate of Return
Alternative Investments
Global Public Equity
Real Assets
Diversifying Assets
Fixed Income
Liquidity Reserve

15.00 %
40.00 %
17.00 %
10.00 %
15.00 %
3.00 %

8.50 %
5.40 %
4.95 %
5.00 %
1.50 %
0.00 %

Discount Rate:
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the
rates applicable for each member and that employer contributions will be made based on rates
determined by the actuary. Based on those assumptions, SERS fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and nonactive SERS members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on SERS investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes
in the Discount Rate:
The following presents the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 7.50%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point
higher than the current rate:
Sensitivity of the Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes
in the Discount Rate (Continued):

Commission’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability

1% Decrease
(6.50%)

Discount Rate
(7.50%)

1% Increase
(8.50%)

$ 14,931,896

$ 12,020,636

$

9,524,393

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued SERS financial report.
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NOTE 9

POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN
The financial statements for the Susquehanna River Basin Commission Post-Employment Benefits
Plan (SRBCPBP) are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions
are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to the
plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the plan.
Investments are reported at fair market value, which for SRBCPBP is determined by the mean of
the most recent bid and asked prices as obtained from dealers that make markets in such securities.
Securities for which market quotations are not readily available are valued at their face value as
determined by the custodian under the direction of the Commission, with the assistance of a
valuation service.
Plan Description and Contribution Information:
Membership of the plan consisted of the following at July 1, 2013, the date of the latest actuarial
valuation:
Active Participants
Vested Former Members
Retired Participants

18
21

Total

39

SRBCPBP is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by the Susquehanna
River Basin Commission. SRBCPBP provides medical insurance benefits to eligible retirees and
their spouses. The Commission does not issue a separate financial report for the SRBCPBP.
Funding Policy:
The contribution requirements of plan members and the Commission are established and may be
amended by the Commission. The Commission did not make a contribution to the Plan in 2016.
There were no contributions from plan members receiving benefits for the year ended June 30, 2016.
Annual Cost and Net Obligation:
The Commission’s annual Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level
of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
years. The following table shows the components of the Commission’s annual OPEB cost for the
year, the amount actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in the Commission’s net OPEB
obligation to SRBCPBP.
Annual Required Contribution
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution

$

Decrease in Net OPEB Asset

(73,760)
16,346
(19,913)
(77,327)

Net OPEB Asset, Beginning of Year
Net OPEB Asset – End of Year

277,052
$
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 9

POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN (CONTINUED)
Three-Year Trend Information:

Fiscal Years
Ending June 30
2014
2015
2016

Percentage of
Annual OPEB
Cost Contributed

Annual
OPEB Cost
$

79,356
78,335
77,327

0%
0%
0%

Net OPEB
(Obligation)/
Asset
$

355,387
277,052
199,725

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the Plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
The funded status of each plan as of July 1, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as
follows:

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets
(a)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL) Entry Age
(b)

Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)
(b-a)

Funded
Ratio
(a/b)

Covered
Payroll
(c)

UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
((b-a) / c)

July 1, 2013

$ 2,055,978

$ 2,109,092

$ 53,114

97.48 %

$ 1,368,819

3.88 %

The accompanying schedule of funding progress – post-employment benefits plan presents trend
information about the amounts contributed to the plan by employers in comparison to the ARC, an
amount that is actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 43.
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a
period not to exceed thirty years.
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan
as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided
at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.
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NOTE 9

POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN (CONTINUED)
In the July 1, 2013 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 5.9% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is a
blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer’s
own investments calculated based on the funded level of the Plan at the valuation date, and an
annual healthcare cost trend rate of 7.0% in 2013, reduced by decrements of 0.5% per year to an
ultimate rate of 5.5% in 2016 and later. Both rates included a 5% inflation assumption. The
actuarial value of assets was determined by using the market value of assets. The UAAL is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization
period at July 1, 2013 was 30 years.

NOTE 10

RENTAL INCOME
The Commission has entered into an agreement to rent a portion of its property to a tenant. Under
the terms of the agreement, monthly rents range from $5,833 to $9,165. In addition, the tenant is
required to maintain general liability and personal property insurance. The initial lease term
extends through March 30, 2019 with an optional renewal term of up to five years. Rental income
was $104,326 for the year ended June 30, 2016. Future minimum rent under the agreement is as
follows at June 30:
2017
2018
2019
Total

NOTE 11

$

106,236
108,344
82,487

$

297,067

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 28, 2016, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule
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The Commission follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements.

1.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General
Fund.

2.

The Commission approves the budget appropriation. The Director, Administration and Finance, and
Executive Director are authorized to transfer budget amounts between departments. However, within any
fund, the Commission’s members must approve any revisions that alter the total appropriations of any fund.

3.

Unused appropriations for the above annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of the year except for the
unexpended balance of such appropriations where contracts are in course of construction at the end of the
year.

4.

The budget amounts shown in the required supplementary information are the final authorized amounts as
approved by the Commission.

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund –
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budgetary Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Original
Budget
Revenues
Signatory Parties
Maryland
New York
Pennsylvania
Federal
Projects and Programs
Chesapeake Bay
Cowanesque Project
EPA Water Quality
Flood Forecast
Flood Hazard Mitigation Grant
PA Public Water Assistance Initiative
Enhanced Bay Monitoring – EPA
AMD – Bear, Sandy, Birch
Remote W/Q Monitoring Network
Didymo Sea Grant
Dirt and Gravel Roads
Surface Water
Other Revenue
Permit Application Fees
NOI Permit Fees
Compliance Monitoring Fees
Special Project Review Fees
Net Realized/Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on Investments
Interest and Dividend Income
Rental Income
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

$

360,000
259,000
573,000
500,000

Final
Budget

$

360,000
259,000
573,000
-

Actual

$

360,000
259,000
473,000
-

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

$

(100,000)
-

390,000
5,000
750,000
30,000
30,000
214,000
34,000
140,000
20,000

392,500
10,000
601,500
50,000
76,000
166,500
612,500
145,000
50,000
194,000
7,000

480,075
8,120
689,714
1,772
48,113
104,824
204,767
80,264
132,664
30,178
94,936
67,283

87,575
(1,880)
88,214
1,772
(1,887)
28,824
38,267
(532,236)
(12,336)
(19,822)
(99,064)
60,283

750,000
1,300,000
1,900,000
225,000

760,000
2,625,000
2,140,000
231,000

774,979
2,300,078
2,371,200
239,380

14,979
(324,922)
231,200
8,380

320,000
70,000
15,000

270,000
70,000
15,000

7,885,000

9,608,000

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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(14,931)
144,602
104,326
37,007
8,991,351

(14,931)
(125,398)
34,326
22,007
(616,649)

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund –
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budgetary Basis (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

4,600,000
1,975,000
695,000
80,000
90,000
20,000
35,000
75,000
40,000
65,000
150,000
75,000
90,000
20,000
460,000
40,000
15,000
75,000
15,000
285,000

4,640,000
2,090,000
1,300,000
90,000
90,000
20,000
25,000
75,000
35,000
65,000
145,000
160,000
95,000
215,000
340,000
40,000
15,000
75,000
15,000
300,000

4,435,838
1,996,894
484,693
68,327
84,772
12,875
22,598
77,187
25,271
60,667
166,674
162,295
106,832
266,037
477,770
25,912
20,977
38,346
26,544
296,812

204,162
93,106
815,307
21,673
5,228
7,125
2,402
(2,187)
9,729
4,333
(21,674)
(2,295)
(11,832)
(51,037)
(137,770)
14,088
(5,977)
36,654
(11,544)
3,188

Total Expenditures

8,900,000

9,830,000

8,857,321

972,679

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue
Over (Under) Expenditures

(1,015,000)

(222,000)

134,030

356,030

1,015,000

1,275,000

1,117,347

-

$ 1,053,000

$ 1,251,377

Expenditures
Personnel Services
Employee Benefits
Special Contractual Services
Travel and Subsistence
Communications
Postage and Freight
Janitorial
Utilities
Rent
Printing and Reproduction
Repairs and Maintenance
Software Maintenance
Insurance
Supplies
Fees – Various
Commission Meetings/Public Hearings
Dues and Memberships
Staff Training
Miscellaneous
Capital Outlay

Other Financing Sources
Transfer in – Water Management Fund
Net Changes in Fund Balance

$

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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Actual

(157,653)
$

198,377

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Schedule of Funding Progress – Post-Employment Benefits Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL) Entry Age
(b)

Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)
(b-a)

-

$ 1,939,535

$ 1,939,535

July 1, 2010

1,430,541

2,609,019

July 1, 2013

2,055,978

2,109,092

Actuarial
Value of
Assets
(a)

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
July 1, 2007

$

Covered
Payroll
(c)

UAAL as a
Percentage of
Covered
Payroll
((b-a) / c)

-%

$ 1,805,129

107.45 %

1,178,478

54.83 %

1,819,564

64.77 %

53,114

97.48 %

1,368,819

3.88 %

Funded Ratio
(a/b)

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Schedule of the Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
For the Last Ten Years*
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016
Commission’s Proportion of the Net Pension Liability

2015

0.066 %

0.064 %

Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

$ 12,020,636

$

9,556,824

Commission’s Covered-Employee Payroll

$

$

3,990,940

Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
as a Percentage of Its Covered-Employee Payroll
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability

*Information for years prior to June 30, 2015 is not available.

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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4,260,921

282.10 %

239.50 %

58.90 %

64.80 %

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Schedule of Commission Contributions
For the Last Ten Years*
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016
Contractually Required Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)
Commission’s Covered Employee Payroll
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll

*Information for years prior to June 30, 2015 is not available.

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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2015

$

965,512
988,414

$

743,951
743,951

$

(22,902)

$

-

$ 4,260,921

$ 3,990,940

23.2 %

18.6 %

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Schedule of Changes in Fund Balance – General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Unassigned
Fund Balance

Assigned Fund Balance
Budgetary
Working
Capital
Balances at July 1, 2015
Revenues
Expenditures
Other Financing Sources
Assignment or Reclassification
Balances at June 30, 2016

$ 2,500,000

Unemployment
Compensation
$

$ 2,500,000

86,820

Accrued
Vacation and
Sick Leave

Reserve for
Programmatic
Changes

Future
Pension
Contributions

Total
Assigned
Fund Balance

Unassigned

Total
Fund Balance

$

$

$

-

$ 3,235,973

$ 5,394,521

$ 8,630,494

500,000

1,000,000

1,554,696

500,000

$ 1,000,000

$ 4,790,669

$

86,820

649,153
54,696

$

703,849

$

-

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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8,991,351
(8,857,321)
1,117,347
(1,554,696)
$ 5,091,202

8,991,351
(8,857,321)
1,117,347
$ 9,881,871

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Commissioners of
Susquehanna River Basin Commission
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Susquehanna River Basin Commission, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 28, 2016.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Susquehanna River Basin
Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s
internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Members of the American and Pennsylvania Institutes of CPAs
176 CUMBERLAND PARKWAY  MECHANICSBURG, PA 17055  Phone (717) 697-3888  Fax (717) 697-6943  www.hnmcpas.com

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

October 28, 2016
Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania

Certified Public Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Commissioners of
Susquehanna River Basin Commission
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Susquehanna
River Basin Commission’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. Susquehanna River Basin
Commission’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Susquehanna River Basin Commission complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Members of the American and Pennsylvania Institutes of CPAs
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Susquehanna River Basin Commission is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Susquehanna River Basin Commission’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Susquehanna
River Basin Commission’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of control deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 28, 2016
Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania

Certified Public Accountants
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Federal Grantor/Pass Through
Grantor/Program Title

Federal CFDA
Number

Agency or
Pass-Through
Number

66.419
66.466

I-00399112/3
CB97390605

66.466
66.466
66.466
Unknown

ME4100070824
7025800000
0603-14-045237
ME4100070114

293,280
76,189
94,936
5,694

11.417

5016-SRBCNOAA-0063

30,178

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Water Pollution Control State, Interstate,
and Tribal Program Support
Enhanced Monitoring
Passed through the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, Department of Environmental
Protection:
Chesapeake Bay Program
Enhanced Chesapeake Bay Monitoring
NFWF – Dirt and Gravel Roads
Rausch Creek Mine Pool

Federal
Award
Expended

$

689,714
128,577

U.S. Department of Commerce
Sea Grant Support
Total Federal Awards Expended

$ 1,318,568
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
grant activity of Susquehanna River Basin Commission under programs of the federal government
for the year ended June 30, 2016. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
Susquehanna River Basin Commission, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Susquehanna River Basin Commission.

NOTE 2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3

INDIRECT COST RATE
Susquehanna River Basin Commission has elected to not use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate
as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Financial Statement Audit:
None
Findings and Questioned Costs – Major Federal Awards Programs Audit:
None
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SUSQUEHANNA RIVER BASIN COMMISSION
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
Summary of Auditors’ Results:
Financial Statements:
Type of auditors’ report issued:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?

Yes

No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Yes

None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted
which would be required to be reported in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards?

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

None reported

Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified?
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR Section 200.516(a)?

Unmodified

Yes

No

Yes

No

Identification of major programs:
CFDA number(s): 66.419
Name of Federal Program:
Water Pollution Control State, Interstate,
and Tribal Program Support
Amount expended: $689,714
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee
Findings – Financial Statement Audit:
None
Findings and Questioned Costs – Major Federal Award Programs Audit:
None
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